
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

 
 

Kern Medical Center 
1700 Mount Vernon Avenue 
Bakersfield, California 93306 

 
Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, August 19, 2020 
 
 

11:30 A.M. 
 
 

BOARD TO RECONVENE 
 
 Board Members: Alsop, Berjis, Bigler, Brar, McLaughlin, Pelz, Sistrunk 

Roll Call: 
 
CONSENT AGENDA/OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT: ALL ITEMS LISTED 
WITH A "CA" ARE CONSIDERED TO BE ROUTINE AND NON-CONTROVERSIAL 
BY KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY STAFF. THE "CA" REPRESENTS THE 
CONSENT AGENDA. CONSENT ITEMS WILL BE CONSIDERED FIRST AND MAY 
BE APPROVED BY ONE MOTION IF NO MEMBER OF THE BOARD OR AUDIENCE 
WISHES TO COMMENT OR ASK QUESTIONS. IF COMMENT OR DISCUSSION IS 
DESIRED BY ANYONE, THE ITEM WILL BE REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT 
AGENDA AND WILL BE CONSIDERED IN LISTED SEQUENCE WITH AN 
OPPORTUNITY FOR ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 
CONCERNING THE ITEM BEFORE ACTION IS TAKEN. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION SHOWN IN CAPS 
 

 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  8.19.2020 
 
 

Page | 2  

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 
 

1) This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons to address the Board on any matter not on 
this agenda but under the jurisdiction of the Board. Board members may respond briefly to 
statements made or questions posed. They may ask a question for clarification, make a referral 
to staff for factual information or request staff to report back to the Board at a later meeting. In 
addition, the Board may take action to direct the staff to place a matter of business on a future 
agenda. SPEAKERS ARE LIMITED TO TWO MINUTES. PLEASE STATE AND SPELL YOUR 
NAME BEFORE MAKING YOUR PRESENTATION. THANK YOU! 

 
BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS OR REPORTS 

 
2) On their own initiative, Board members may make an announcement or a report on their own 

activities. They may ask a question for clarification, make a referral to staff or take action to 
have staff place a matter of business on a future agenda (Government Code section 
54954.2(a)(2)) 

 
ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 

 
CA 
3) Minutes for Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors regular meeting on  

July 15, 2020 –  
APPROVE 

 
CA 
4) Proposed Resolution regarding acceptance of grant proceeds from the California Health 

Facilities Financing Authority under the Children’s Hospital Bond Act of 2018 in the amount of 
$9,289,981 – 

 APPROVE; ADOPT RESOLUTION 
 
CA 
5) Proposed retroactive Amendment No. 3 to Agreement 161-2016 with Valley Children’s Medical 

Group, Inc., an independent contractor, for on-site consultation services to pediatric patients 
for the period August 2, 2015 through August 1, 2020, extending the term for one year from 
August 2, 2020 through August 1, 2021, and increasing the maximum payable by $161,500, 
from $807,500 to $969,000, to cover the extended term –   

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 
 
CA 
6) Proposed Agreement with Katayoun Sabetian, M.D., Inc., an independent contractor, for 

professional medical services in the Department of Medicine from September 1, 2020 through 
August 31, 2022, in an amount not to exceed $610,000 –  

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 
 
CA 
7) Proposed retroactive Sales Order OPT-0245191 with Cerner Corporation, an independent 

contractor, for the purchase of medical coding services from July 20, 2020 through July 19, 
2022, in an amount not to exceed $1,728,000 – 
APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO SIGN 

 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  8.19.2020 
 
 

Page | 3  

CA 
8) Proposed Agreement with Freedom Healthcare Staffing, an independent contractor, for 

supplemental healthcare staffing services from August 19, 2020 through August 18, 2021, in 
an amount not to exceed $1,684,800 –  

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN; AUTHORIZE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
TO SIGN SUPPLEMENTAL DOCUMENTS SUBJECT TO APPROVAL AS TO FORM BY 
COUNSEL  

 
9) Kern County Hospital Authority Financial report –  
 RECEIVE AND FILE 
 
10) Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Executive Officer report –  
 RECEIVE AND FILE 
 
CA 
11) Claims and Lawsuits Filed as of July 31, 2020 –  
 RECEIVE AND FILE 
 
 
ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 
12) Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health practitioners (Health and Safety 

Code Section 101855(j)(2)) – 
 
13) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION  
 (Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Martin L. Goldman, M.D., an 

individual v. Kern County Hospital Authority, et al., Kern County Superior Court Case No. BCV-
18-100390 SDS – 

 
14) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION  

(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Tyler Andrews, an individual v. 
Kern County Hospital Authority, et al., Kern County Superior Court Case No. BCV-19-103529 
TSC – 
 

15) Request for Closed Session for the purpose of discussion or taking action on authority trade 
secrets (Health and Safety Code Section 101855(e)(1)) – 
 

16) CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS - Agency designated representatives: Vice 
President & General Counsel Karen S. Barnes and designated staff – Unrepresented 
Employee: Chief Executive Officer (Government Code Section 54957.6) – 

 
 
RECONVENE FROM CLOSED SESSION 
 
REPORT ON ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 
 
ADJOURN TO WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 16, 2020, AT 11:30 A.M. 

 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  8.19.2020 
 
 

Page | 4  

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION FOR AGENDA ITEMS 
 
All agenda item supporting documentation is available for public review at Kern Medical Center in the 
Administration Department, 1700 Mount Vernon Avenue, Bakersfield, 93306 during regular business 
hours, 8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, following the posting of the agenda.  Any 
supporting documentation that relates to an agenda item for an open session of any regular meeting 
that is distributed after the agenda is posted and prior to the meeting will also be available for review 
at the same location.   

 
 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT 
(Government Code Section 54953.2) 

 
The Kern Medical Center Conference Room is accessible to persons with disabilities. Disabled 
individuals who need special assistance to attend or participate in a meeting of the Kern County 
Hospital Authority Board of Governors may request assistance at Kern Medical Center in the 
Administration Department, 1700 Mount Vernon Avenue, Bakersfield, California, or by calling (661) 
326-2102. Every effort will be made to reasonably accommodate individuals with disabilities by making 
meeting material available in alternative formats. Requests for assistance should be made five (5) 
working days in advance of a meeting whenever possible. 
  



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  8.19.2020 
 
 

Page | 5  

11) CLAIMS AND LAWSUITS FILED AS OF JULY 31, 2020 –  
 RECEIVE AND FILE  
 

A) First Amended Complaint in the matter of Maria Elena Lopez-Rodriguez v. Kern Medical 
Surgery Center, LLC, et al., Kern County Superior Court Case No. BCV-20-100510 SDS 

B) Complaint in the matter of Weatherby Locums, Inc. v. Kern County Hospital Authority, United 
States District Court (EDCA) Case No. 1:20-cv-00949-NONE-JLT 

C) Application for Leave to Present Late Claim in the matter of Jihad Hashim 
D) Notice of Charge of Discrimination in the matter of Lisa Nafus, EEOC Charge No. 480-2020-

03067 
E) Claim in the matter of Edward Ceballos 

 



 
 
 
 
 

SUMMARY OF PROCEEDINGS 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

 
 

Kern Medical Center 
1700 Mount Vernon Avenue 
Bakersfield, California 93306 

 
Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, July 15, 2020 
 
 

11:30 A.M. 
 

BOARD RECONVENED 
  
Board Members: Alsop, Berjis, Bigler, Brar, McLaughlin, Pelz, Sistrunk 
ROLL CALL:  5 Present; 2 Absent - Alsop, McLaughlin 

 
NOTE: The vote is displayed in bold below each item. For example, Alsop-McLaughlin 
denotes Director Alsop made the motion and Director McLaughlin seconded the motion. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA/OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT: ALL ITEMS LISTED WITH 
A "CA" ARE CONSIDERED TO BE ROUTINE AND APPROVED BY ONE MOTION. 
 
BOARD ACTION SHOWN IN CAPS 

 
 

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 
 

1) This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons to address the Board on any matter 
not on this agenda but under the jurisdiction of the Board. Board members may respond 
briefly to statements made or questions posed. They may ask a question for 
clarification, make a referral to staff for factual information or request staff to report 
back to the Board at a later meeting. In addition, the Board may take action to direct 
the staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda. SPEAKERS ARE LIMITED 
TO TWO MINUTES. PLEASE STATE AND SPELL YOUR NAME BEFORE MAKING 
YOUR PRESENTATION. THANK YOU! 
NO ONE HEARD 

 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors  
  Regular Meeting   
  7.15.2020 
 
 

Page | 2  

BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS OR REPORTS 
 
2) On their own initiative, Board members may make an announcement or a report on their own 

activities. They may ask a question for clarification, make a referral to staff or take action to 
have staff place a matter of business on a future agenda (Government Code section 
54954.2(a)(2)) 

 
DIRECTOR SISTRUNK ANNOUNCED THAT SHE IS RETIRING FROM AERA ENERGY 
EFFECTIVE SEPTEMBER 30, 2020, AND WILL BE RESIGNING FROM THE KERN 
COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY BOARD OF GOVERNORS AFTER THE SEPTEMBER 
MEETING. SHE EXPRESSED HER APPRECIATION FOR THE OPPORTUNITY TO SERVE 
ON THE BOARD  
 

ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 
 

CA 
3) Minutes for Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors regular meeting on  

July 15, 2020 –  
APPROVED 
Pelz-Sistrunk: 5 Ayes; 2 Absent - Alsop, McLaughlin 

 
CA 
4) Proposed retroactive Agreement with Brink’s U.S., a Division of Brink’s Incorporated, an 

independent contractor, containing non-standard terms and conditions, for armored transport 
services from July 13, 2020 through July 12, 2023, in an amount not to exceed $42,963 –   

 APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO SIGN AGREEMENT 032-
2020 
Pelz-Sistrunk: 5 Ayes; 2 Absent - Alsop, McLaughlin 

 
CA 
5) Proposed Agreement with Mission Linen Supply, an independent contractor, for linen supply 

items from August 1, 2020 through July 31, 2021, in an amount not to exceed $1,200,000 –   
 APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 033-2020 
 Pelz-Sistrunk: 5 Ayes; 2 Absent - Alsop, McLaughlin 
 
CA 
6) Proposed Agreement with Lee Construction, Inc., an independent contractor, for construction 

upgrades required for fluoroscopy machine installation, effective July 15, 2020, in an amount 
not to exceed $451,742 –   

 MADE FINDING PROJECT IS EXEMPT FROM FURTHER CEQA REVIEW PER SECTIONS 
15301, 15302 AND 15061(b)(3) OF STATE CEQA GUIDELINES; APPROVED; AUTHORIZED 
CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 034-2020 

 Pelz-Sistrunk: 5 Ayes; 2 Absent - Alsop, McLaughlin 
 
CA 
7) Proposed License and Services Agreement with Informatica, LLC, an independent contractor, 

containing non-standard terms and conditions, for legacy data software support from July 15, 
2020 through July 14, 2022, in an amount not to exceed $141,600 –  

 APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 035-2020 
 Pelz-Sistrunk: 5 Ayes; 2 Absent - Alsop, McLaughlin 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors  
  Regular Meeting   
  7.15.2020 
 
 

Page | 3  

CA 
8) Proposed retroactive Amendment No. 1 to Agreement 147-2019 with the County of Kern, as 

represented by the County Administrative Office and Kern County Sheriff’s Office, for health 
care services to in-custody inmates housed in Kern County Justice Facility, for the period May 
12, 2018 through June 30, 2020, extending the term for one year from July 1, 2020 through 
June 30, 2021 –  

 APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 036-2020 
 Pelz-Sistrunk: 5 Ayes; 2 Absent - Alsop, McLaughlin 
 
9) Kern County Hospital Authority Financial report –  
 RECEIVED AND FILED 
 Brar-Pelz: 5 Ayes; 2 Absent - Alsop, McLaughlin 
 
NOTE: DIRECTOR MCLAUGHLIN JOINED THE MEETING AFTER THE VOTE ON AGENDA ITEM 
9 AND BEFORE THE VOTE ON AGENDA ITEM 10 
 
10) Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Executive Officer report –  
 RECEIVED AND FILED 
 Sistrunk-Brar: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Alsop 
 
CA 
11) Claims and Lawsuits Filed as of June 30, 2020 –  
 RECEIVED AND FILED 
 Pelz-Sistrunk: 5 Ayes; 2 Absent - Alsop, McLaughlin 
 
 
ADJOURNED TO CLOSED SESSION 
Pelz-Sistrunk 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 
12) Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health practitioners (Health and Safety 

Code Section 101855(j)(2)) – SEE RESULTS BELOW 
 
13) Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health facilities (Health and Safety Code 

Section 101855(j)(2)) – SEE RESULTS BELOW 
 
14) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION  
 (Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Martin L. Goldman, M.D., an 

individual v. Kern County Hospital Authority, et al., Kern County Superior Court Case No. BCV-
18-100390 SDS – SEE RESULTS BELOW 
 

15) PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION - Title: Chief Executive Officer 
(Government Code Section 54957) – SEE RESULTS BELOW 

 
16) CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS - Agency designated representatives: Vice 

President & General Counsel Karen S. Barnes and designated staff – Unrepresented 
Employee: Chief Executive Officer (Government Code Section 54957.6) – SEE RESULTS 
BELOW 

 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors  
  Regular Meeting   
  7.15.2020 
 
 

Page | 4  

RECONVENED FROM CLOSED SESSION 
Pelz-McLaughlin 
 
 
REPORT ON ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 
 

Item No. 12 concerning Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health 
practitioners (Health and Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2)) – HEARD; BY A UNANIMOUS 
VOTE OF THOSE DIRECTORS PRESENT (MOTION BY DIRECTOR MCLAUGHLIN, 
SECOND BY DIRECTOR SISTRUNK; 1 ABSENT - DIRECTOR ALSOP), THE BOARD 
APPROVED ALL PROVIDERS RECOMMENDED FOR INITIAL APPOINTMENT, 
REAPPOINTMENT, REVIEW/RELEASE OF PROCTORING, CHANGE IN STAFF STATUS, 
AND VOLUNTARY RESIGNATION OF PRIVILEGES; NO OTHER REPORTABLE ACTION 
TAKEN 
 
Item No. 13 concerning Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health facilities 
(Health and Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2)) – HEARD; NO REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 
 
Item No. 14 concerning CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION 
(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Martin L. Goldman, M.D., an 
individual v. Kern County Hospital Authority, et al., Kern County Superior Court Case No. 
BCV-18-100390 SDS – HEARD; NO REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 
 
Item No. 15 concerning PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION - Title: Chief 
Executive Officer (Government Code Section 54957) – HEARD; NO REPORTABLE ACTION 
TAKEN 
 
Item No. 16 concerning CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS - Agency designated 
representatives: Vice President & General Counsel Karen S. Barnes and designated staff – 
Unrepresented Employee: Chief Executive Officer (Government Code Section 54957.6) – 
HEARD; NO REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 
 

 
ADJOURNED TO WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 19, 2020, AT 11:30 A.M. 
Brar 
 
 
 
 
/s/ Mona A. Allen 

Authority Board Coordinator 
 
 
 
 
/s/ Russell E. Bigler 

Chairman, Board of Governors 
Kern County Hospital Authority 
 



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 

A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
August 19, 2020 
 
Subject: Proposed Acceptance of Grant Proceeds under the Children’s Hospital Bond Act of 2018 from 
the California Health Facilities Financing Authority  
 
Recommended Action: Approve; Adopt Resolution 
 
Summary:   
 
Kern Medical Center requests that your Board adopt the attached proposed resolution accepting a 
grant award of $9,289,941.38, less administrative costs and costs of issuance totaling $99,866.87, from 
the California Health Facilities Financing Authority, to expand or improve health care access by children 
eligible for governmental health insurance programs and indigent, underserved, and uninsured 
children.  The proposed resolution also authorizes the Chief Executive Officer to appoint Erica Easton 
to administer the grant award on behalf of the hospital and the Chief Financial Officer to establish an 
interest bearing account to deposit the grant award for purposes of payments of project expenditures 
to better track the accounting of the receipt and expenditure of the grant award, both requirements of 
the grant. 
 
The grant will provide funding for the Kern Medical Every Kid program that include projects throughout 
both the inpatient and outpatient pediatric clinical areas.  The following items highlight the positive 
impact of the funding. 
 
Inpatient Pediatric Unit: Relocation of the Pediatric Unit to 4C, where it will be designed and equipped 
with new, efficient technology and equipment to better serve our pediatric patients and their families.  
The unit will feature 11 pediatric beds, including an isolation room. 
 
Pediatric Emergency Room: Design and construction of a Pediatric Unit within our existing Emergency 
Department.  This will allow for our pediatric patients to be cared for in a specially designed unit.  
Currently, pediatric patients account for approximately 20% of our overall volume in the Emergency 
Department.  
 
Columbus Pediatric Outpatient Clinic: Renovation of the existing clinic space will provide a refresh of 
the space and update all of the clinical areas with new equipment.  The enhancements will improve 
workflow that will allow us to increase the number of children we serve by more than 15% annually.  
The renovation will include expanding our waiting room areas, which will allow for better physical 
distancing for our critically and chronically ill patients. 
 
 



Proposed Acceptance of Grant Proceeds under the Children’s Hospital Bond Act of 2018 from the California 
Health Facilities Financing Authority 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

Equipment and Technology: Purchase of new specialty equipment for the Neonatal Intensive Care Unit, 
surgical equipment for our ENT specialists, simulation equipment for education, and diagnostic 
equipment.  Several software applications will be funded for our telehealth program, breast milk 
program, and the sepsis and antimicrobial stewardship programs.  
 
Preparations for the Every Kid program has already begun and will be complete by November 2023. 
 
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board adopt the proposed resolution accepting the grant 
proceeds from the California Health Facilities Financing Authority. 
 



BEFORE THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
OF THE KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 

_________________ 
 
 
In the matter of:                       Resolution No. 2020-___ 
 
ACCEPTANCE OF GRANT PROCEEDS 
FROM THE CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL 
BOND ACT OF 2018 
_____________________________________ 
 
 I, MONA A. ALLEN, Authority Board Coordinator for the Kern County Hospital 
Authority, hereby certify that the following Resolution, on motion of Director Pelz, 
seconded by Director Brar, was duly and regularly adopted by the Board of Governors of 
the Kern County Hospital Authority at an official meeting thereof on the 19th day of August, 
2020, by the following vote, and that a copy of the Resolution has been delivered to the 
Chairman of the Board of Governors.  
 
AYES:   
 
NOES:   
 
ABSENT:   
 
                  MONA A. ALLEN  

                 Authority Board Coordinator 
  Kern County Hospital Authority  

          
 
                ____________________________ 
                Mona A. Allen             
 
             

 
RESOLUTION 

 
Section 1.  WHEREAS: 

   
(a) The Kern County Hospital Authority Act (Health & Saf. Code, §101852 et 

seq.) provides that the Kern County Hospital Authority (“Authority”) has the power “to 
participate in, contract for, and to accept, gifts, grants, and loans of funds, property, or 
other aid or finance opportunity in any form from the federal government, the state, a state 
agency, or other source or combination thereof, as otherwise would be available to a 
public, government, or private entity and to comply, subject to this chapter, with the terms 
and conditions thereof.”  (Health & Saf. Code, § 101855(a)(13).) (Emphasis added.); and 



Page 2 of 3 
 

 
(b) On June 25, 2020, the California Health Facilities Financing Authority 

adopted Resolution No. CHP-4E 2020-11 approving a grant in the amount of 
$9,289,941.38, less administrative costs and costs of issuance (“Grant Award”), to Kern 
Medical Center, to expand or improve health care access by children eligible for 
governmental health insurance programs and indigent, underserved, and uninsured 
children; and 

 
(c) As a condition to receiving the Grant Award, the Board of Governors must 

provide the California Health Facilities Financing Authority a true, correct, complete and 
certified copy of a resolution adopted by the Board of Governors as the governing body of 
Kern Medical Center; and 

 
(d) The Board of Governors has received information about the terms and 

conditions of the Grant Award from the California Health Facilities Financing Authority, 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference as Exhibit “A”, and intends to 
accept said terms and conditions of the Grant Award; and 

 
(e) It is in the best interest of Kern Medical Center that the Board of Governors 

accept the Grant Award. 
 
 Section 2.  NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of 
Governors of the Kern County Hospital Authority, as follows: 
 

1. This Board finds the facts recited herein are true, and further finds that this 
Board has jurisdiction to consider, approve, and adopt the subject of this Resolution. 
 

2. This Board hereby accepts all terms and conditions of the Grant Award in 
the amount of $9,289,941.38, less administrative costs and costs of issuance, on behalf of 
the Kern Medical Center, and expressly authorizes and directs the Chief Executive Officer, 
to carry out any duties necessary to effectuate acceptance on behalf of Kern Medical 
Center, including but not limited to the execution and delivery of the grant agreement and 
other relevant documents as may be necessary. 

 
3. This Board hereby authorizes the Chief Executive Officer the appoint Erica 

Easton to administer the Grant Award on behalf of Kern Medical Center. 
 
4. This Board hereby authorizes the Chief Financial Officer to establish an 

interest bearing account to deposit the Grant Award for purposes of payments of project 
expenditures to better track the accounting of the receipt and expenditure of the Grant 
Award. 

 
5. The provisions of this Resolution shall be effective, in force, and operative 

as the 19th day of August, 2020. 
  



Page 3 of 3 
 

6. The Authority Board Coordinator shall provide copies of this Resolution to 
the following: 

 
  Chief Executive Officer   

Chief Financial Officer 
Legal Services Department 
California Health Facilities Financing Authority 
Erica Easton  

   
   
   



EXHIBIT 

A 



Grant Number  

 

TAB 1 

Grant Agreement 

 

TAB 2  

EXHIBIT A  

Grant Award Letter 

 

TAB 3  

EXHIBIT B 

Grant Funds Disbursement 

Certification 

 

TAB 4  

EXHIBIT C 

Resolution of the Authority 

 

TAB 5  

EXHIBIT D 

Certified Resolution of 

Grantee’s Governing Board 

 

TAB 6 

EXHIBIT E 

Project Description 

 

TAB 7 

EXHIBIT F 

Terms & Conditions 

 



2 
Grant Number  

CALIFORNIA HEALTH FACILITIES FINANCING AUTHORITY 

 

CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL BOND ACT OF 2018 (PROPOSITION 4) 

 

GRANT AGREEMENT NUMBER XXX 

 

HOSPITAL NAME 

HOSPITAL ADDRESS 

THIS GRANT AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is made between Hospital Name 

(“Grantee”) and the California Health Facilities Financing Authority (“CHFFA” or the 

“Authority”).  

RECITALS: 

A. Grantee has applied to CHFFA for a grant from the Children’s Hospital 

Program of 2018 to fund the hereinafter defined Project. 

B. CHFFA has determined that Grantee’s Application for the grant meets the 

eligibility criteria required by the hereinafter defined Regulations. 

C. Subject to the availability of grant monies in the hereinafter defined Program 

Fund, CHFFA proposes to provide a grant of NET GRANT AWARD (the 

"Grant") to Grantee in consideration of, and on condition that the sum is 

expended in carrying out the purposes of the hereinafter defined Project from 

the hereinafter defined Program Fund and on the terms and conditions 

contained herein. 

Total Grant Amount not to exceed NET GRANT AWARD. 

The following specific provisions as determined by the Authority are made 

part of and incorporated into the Agreement: 

See Section 6.11 

D. The purpose of this Agreement is to set forth the terms and conditions upon 

which CHFFA will provide the Grant to Grantee to undertake the Project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, CHFFA and Grantee agree as follows: 

 

ARTICLE I – DEFINITIONS 

Section 1.1 – INTRODUCTION. Any capitalized terms used but not otherwise 

defined in this Agreement shall have the meaning set forth in the Regulations. 

Section 1.2 –  AGREEMENT means this Agreement, including any amendments and 

exhibits hereto. 



3 
Grant Number  

Section 1.3 – APPLICATION means Grantee’s completed Application submitted to 

CHFFA, received XX for a Requested Amount of XX (incorporated herein by reference), 

including any supplemental Project information requested by the Authority. 

Section 1.4 – AUTHORITY or CHFFA means the California Health Facilities 

Financing Authority. 

Section 1.5 – GRANT AWARD LETTER means CHFFA’s Grant Award Letter 

dated XX to Grantee relating to the Grant and attached hereto as Exhibit A (incorporated 

herein by reference). 

Section 1.6 – DISBURSEMENT REQUEST means the request for disbursement of 

Grant funds as described in Grant Funds Disbursement Certification executed by Grantee 

and attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

Section 1.7 – ELIGIBLE COSTS means those costs of the Project set forth in 

Attachment A of the Application and as set forth in Exhibit E of this Agreement that meet 

the criteria defined in Section 7002 of the Regulations. 

Section 1.8 – EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR means the Executive Director of CHFFA. 

Section 1.9 – GRANT means the Grant (as defined in Section 7000(s) of the 

Regulations) of NET GRANT AWARD to Grantee by CHFFA as evidenced by this 

Agreement. 

Section 1.10 – GRANT DOCUMENTS means this Agreement, the Application, the 

Grant Award Letter, and the Resolution, including any and all exhibits to such documents. 

Section 1.11 – GRANTEE means HOSPITAL NAME. 

Section 1.12 – PROGRAM means the program resulting from the Children’s 

Hospital Bond Act of 2018 (Part 6.3 (commencing with Section 1179.81), Division 1, Health 

and Safety Code), approved by voters on November 6, 2018. 

Section 1.13 – PROGRAM FUND means the Children’s Hospital Bond Act Fund, 

as defined in Section 1179.83 of the Health and Safety Code. 

Section 1.14 – PROJECT means the Project to be funded with the Grant as more 

specifically described in the Application, although the scope of the Project may be clarified 

in the Authority staff report accompanying the Resolution submitted to the Authority 

members. The Project is more specifically defined in Exhibit E of this Agreement. The 

Authority may broaden the definition of the Project, at its discretion if it is determined that 

additional elements are needed to ensure that the Project can provide its intended services. 

Any written approval of CHFFA to expand the Project shall become incorporated into this 

Agreement.  

Section 1.15 – GRANT PERIOD means the period beginning on the date of Final 

Allocation and ending on XX, as such period may be extended upon the prior written 



4 
Grant Number  

approval of CHFFA pursuant to Section 7015(d) of the Regulations. However, any extension 

shall not surpass the Resolution expiration date pursuant to Section 1.17 of this Agreement. 

Any written approval of CHFFA extending the Grant Period shall become incorporated into 

this Agreement. 

Section 1.16 – REGULATIONS means The Children’s Hospital Program of 2018, 

Title 4, Division 10, Chapter 1 (commencing with Section 7000) of the California Code of 

Regulations, as such regulations may be amended from time to time. 

Section 1.17 – RESOLUTION means Resolution No. XX (Exhibit C) adopted by 

CHFFA on XX. Any amendment to the Resolution shall become incorporated into this 

Agreement. 

ARTICLE II – DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY 

Section 2.1 – Pursuant to the Resolution, the Executive Director or the Deputy 

Exexutive Director, is authorized to act for and on behalf and in the name of CHFFA, 

including, but not limited to: 

(a) Taking all steps necessary with respect to the Grant to Grantee, including 

preparing and executing this Agreement and disbursing funds pursuant to 

this Agreement and the Regulations; 

(b) Approving any minor, non-material changes in the Project as the Executive 

Director or the Deputy Executive Director shall deem appropriate and 

authorized under the Regulations in his or her sole discretion (provided that 

the amount of the Grant may not be increased above the amount approved 

by CHFFA and contained in this Agreement); 

(c) Drawing money from the Program Fund not to exceed the amount of the 

Grant;  

(d) Executing and delivering to Grantee any and all documents necessary to 

complete the transfer of Grant funds; and 

(e) Undertaking any and all things and executing and delivering any and all 

documents which the Executive Director or the Deputy Executive Director 

deems necessary or advisable in order to effectuate the purposes of the Grant 

Documents and the transactions contemplated thereby. 

ARTICLE III – REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 

Grantee makes the following representations and warranties to CHFFA as of the 

date of execution of this Agreement and of the date of each disbursement of Grant funds to 

Grantee: 

Section 3.1 – LEGAL STATUS. Grantee is an Eligible Hospital as defined in Section 

7000(l) of the Regulations that meets the eligibility requirements of Section 7001 of the 

Regulations and has full legal right, power and authority to enter into this Agreement and 



5 
Grant Number  

the other Grant Documents to which it is a party and to carry out and consummate all 

transactions contemplated hereby and by the other Grant Documents and by proper corporate 

action has duly authorized the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and 

the other Grant Documents to which it is a party. A true, correct and complete copy of the 

certified resolution of Grantee’s governing body authorizing the execution and delivery of 

this Agreement and the other Grant Documents to which it is a party is attached hereto as 

Exhibit D. Such resolution has not been amended, modified or rescinded in any manner since 

the date of its adoption and the same is now in full force and effect as of the date hereof. 

Section 3.2 – VALID AND BINDING OBLIGATION. This Agreement has been 

duly authorized, executed and delivered by Grantee, and is a valid and binding agreement of 

Grantee, except as enforcement may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency or other laws 

affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights generally and by the application of equitable 

principles.  

Section 3.3 – PROJECT AND ELIGIBLE COSTS. The Project and the Eligible Costs 

relating to the Project meet the requirements of the Regulations, including the definition of 

"Project" contained in Section 7000(ii) and the requirements for “Eligible Project Costs” 

contained in Section 7002 of the Regulations. If the Project involves funding architect, design, 

or engineering fees or land acquisition costs as part of an associated larger project, such larger 

project is expected to be completed within the timelines provided in the Application. 

Section 3.4 – PROPERTY OWNERSHIP. Grantee holds good and marketable fee 

simple title to the real property underlying the Project (except for equipment acquisition 

Projects). If any portion of the Project (except for equipment acquisition Projects) is located on 

any real property leased by Grantee, Grantee has satisfied the requirements of Section 7014 of 

the Regulations. 

Section 3.5 – APPLICATION. To the best of Grantee’s knowledge and belief the 

information contained in the Application is true and correct. To the best of Grantee’s 

knowledge and belief no information, exhibit or report furnished to the Authority by Grantee 

in connection with the Application or the negotiation of this Agreement contains any untrue 

statement of a material fact or omits to state a material fact required to be stated therein or 

necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were 

made, not misleading. 

Section 3.6 – GRANT DOCUMENTS. Grantee has access to professional advice to the 

extent necessary to enable Grantee to fully comply with the terms of the Grant Documents.  

ARTICLE IV - CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO EACH DISBURSEMENT 

The obligation of CHFFA to make each disbursement of Grant funds during the Grant 

Period under this Agreement is subject to all of the following conditions: 

Section 4.1 – DOCUMENTATION. This Agreement shall be fully executed and 

delivered by Grantee and CHFFA in form and substance satisfactory to CHFFA. 

Section 4.2 – REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES. The representations and 



6 
Grant Number  

warranties contained in Article III of this Agreement are true and correct as of the date of such 

disbursement. 

Section 4.3 – NO EVENT OF DEFAULT. There shall not exist an Event of Default 

under this Agreement, and there shall exist no event, omission or failure of condition, which, 

after notice or lapse of time, would constitute an Event of Default under this Agreement.  

Section 4.4 – DISBURSEMENT REQUEST. Grantee shall have delivered to CHFFA 

a completed Disbursement Request relating to such disbursement in form and substance 

satisfactory to CHFFA. The Disbursement Request shall be on official letterhead and include 

the amount of funds requested and copies of applicable supporting documentation justifying 

funds requested, and in form and substance satisfactory to CHFFA. 

Section 4.5 – FUNDING CONDITIONS. Grantee shall meet all applicable funding 

conditions pursuant to Section 7013.1 of the Regulations, Exhibit F of this Agreement (as 

required under Section 7005(a)(4) of the Regulations), the Grant Award Letter, the 

Resolution, and this Agreement. Grantee shall obtain prior written authorization from 

CHFFA to make changes in the eligible use of funds that exceed ten percent (10%) of the 

amount of any budget line item of Attachment A of the Application (see Exhibit E-1 of this 

Agreement). Grantee memorializes the agreement and certification to the terms of Exhibit F of 

this Agreement (as required under Section 7005(a)(4) of the Regulations) submitted with the 

Application, as executed by an authorized officer of the Grantee. 

ARTICLE V – GRANT DISBURSEMENT PROCEDURES 

Section 5.1 – DISBURSEMENT PROCESS. Grantee shall make Disbursement 

Requests to CHFFA for disbursement of Grant funds pursuant to the requirements of 

Articles IV and V of this Agreement at least sixty (60) calendar days before the date such 

funds are needed by Grantee. Grantee acknowledges that CHFFA will make only one 

disbursement every ninety (90) calendar days. CHFFA may allow more frequent 

disbursements, at its discretion after consultation with the Grantee. CHFFA shall use its best 

efforts to respond to a Disbursement Request within sixty (60) calendar days after the 

receipt of such Disbursement Request. CHFFA shall notify Grantee in writing of any 

deficiencies or discrepancies in the Disbursement Request. Grantee shall not receive a 

disbursement until Grantee corrects any such deficiencies or discrepancies.  

Section 5.2 – AMOUNT OF DISBURSEMENT. Grant funds shall be released upon 

receipt of Disbursement Requests made pursuant to Section 5.1 of this Agreement, which shall 

include credit for interest earnings on any previously released portion of the Grant and pursuant 

to Section 7013.1(e) of the Regulations. Grant funds shall be disbursed up to the amount of the 

Grant authorized under this Agreement and only for Eligible Costs. Grantee shall establish an 

interest bearing bank account to deposit the Grant funds and shall maintain this account for 

purposes of payments of Project expenditures. A segregated sub-account may be used given 

the bank statement allows for the accounting of the receipt and expenditure of Grant funds and 

the interest earned from these funds, separately from other funds in the account. Upon request 

from CHFFA, Grantee shall submit copies of all bank statements for such account or 

subaccount to CHFFA. All interest earned from Grant funds shall be paid to the Authority, 

either by direct payment or reduction of disbursements. At the end of the Grant Period 



7 
Grant Number  

(inclusive of any extensions permitted by CHFFA per Section 7015(d) of the Regulations), any 

unused Grant funds revert to and shall be paid to the Authority. 

Section 5.3 – DISBURSEMENT PERIOD. The initial Disbursement Request for 

Grant funds shall be made no later than six (6) months from date of execution of this 

Agreement, and all Grant disbursements shall be disbursed within the Grant Period. In the 

event Grantee fails to complete the Project by the end of the Grant Period (inclusive of any 

extensions permitted by CHFFA pursuant to Section 7015(d) of the Regulations), CHFFA 

may require remedies, including forfeiture and return of Grant funds to CHFFA pursuant to 

the Regulations, including but not limited to Sections 7015(c) and 7016 of the Regulations. In 

addition, if the Grant is funding architect, design, or engineering fees or land acquisition costs 

as part of the Project, Grantee may be required to return all Grant funds if CHFFA cannot 

determine that the associated larger Project has been completed, based on the timelines 

provided in the Application. 

ARTICLE VI – AFFIRMATIVE COVENANTS 

Section 6.1 – CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION. Upon completion of the Project, 

Grantee shall certify to CHFFA that the Project is complete by submitting a Completion 

Certificate and Final Report Form No. CHFFA 10 CHP 18-CCFR (10/2019) pursuant to 

Section 7015 of the Regulations. The Completion Certificate and Final Report shall be 

completed and submitted to CHFFA no later than sixty (60) calendar days upon CHFFA’s 

request. 

Section 6.2 – COMPLIANCE WITH CALIFORNIA LAW. Grantee shall comply 

with and be bound by all laws of the State of California including Health and Safety Code 

Sections 1179.81, et. seq. and Regulations governing the Children’s Hospital Bond Act of 2018. 

Section 6.3 – AUDIT PROVISIONS AND RECORD REQUIREMENTS. The 

Grantee shall maintain satisfactory financial accounts, documents and records for the 

Project, and Grantee acknowledges that pursuant to Section 7017 of the Regulations, the 

California State Auditor and CHFFA staff may conduct periodic audits to ensure that 

Grantee is using the Grant consistent with the Children’s Hospital Program of 2018 

requirements and the terms of this Agreement for the Project. Pursuant to Section 7017(b) 

of the Regulations, Grantee shall retain all Children’s Hospital Program of 2018 

documentation and financial data necessary to substantiate the purposes for which the Grant 

funds were spent for a period of three years after the certification of completion of the Project 

has been submitted to CHFFA or until June 30, 2036, whichever is later. Equipment records 

shall be maintained accurately and shall include a description of the equipment; 

manufacturer’s serial number; model number or other identification number; source of 

funding for the equipment, including the award number; acquisition date; unit acquisition 

cost; current location; and ultimate disposition data, including date of disposal. 

Section 6.4 – LITIGATION. Grantee shall promptly give notice in writing to CHFFA 

of any pending or threatened administrative action or litigation related to the Project in which 

the amount claimed is in excess of twenty five thousand dollars ($25,000). 



8 
Grant Number  

Section 6.5 – NOTICE TO CHFFA. Grantee shall promptly give notice in writing to 

CHFFA of any uninsured or partially uninsured loss related to the Project through fire, theft, 

liability, or otherwise in excess of an aggregate of twenty five thousand dollars ($25,000). 

Section. 6.6 – RELEASE. Grantee shall waive all claims and recourse against CHFFA 

including the right to contribution for loss or damage to persons or property arising from, 

growing out of, or in any way connected with or incident to this Agreement, Grantee’s use of 

the Grant funds, Grantee’s business operations, or the Project. The provisions of this Section 

6.6 shall survive termination of this Agreement. 

Section 6.7 – INDEMNIFICATION. Grantee shall defend, indemnify and hold 

harmless CHFFA and the State, and all officers, trustees, agents and employees of the same, 

from and against any and all claims, losses, costs, damages, or liabilities of any kind or 

nature, whether direct or indirect, arising from or relating to the Grant, the Project or the 

Program. The provisions of this Section 6.7 shall survive termination of this Agreement. 

Section 6.8 – NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE. Grantee and its contractors and 

subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, harass, or allow harassment against any 

employee or  applicant for employment because of race, religious creed, color, national 

origin, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, genetic 

information, marital status, sex, gender, gender identity, gender expression, age, sexual 

orientation, or military and veteran status. Grantee and its contractors and subcontractors 

shall ensure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for 

employment are free from such discrimination and harassment. Grantee and its contractors 

and subcontractors shall give written notice of their obligations under this clause to labor 

organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other agreement. 

Section 6.9 – PROJECT COMPLETION. The Grantee shall assume any obligation to 

furnish any additional funds that may be necessary to complete the Project.  

Section 6.10 – PAYMENT OF RENT. If any portion of the Project (except for 

equipment acquisition Projects) is located on any real property leased by Grantee, Grantee shall 

budget for payment of rent each year (unless Grantee pays a nominal yearly rent or has paid 

full rent under the lease agreement). 

Section 6.11– AFFILIATION AGREEMENTS. The Grantee shall provide notice to 

CHFFA and the State Treasurer’s Office at least sixty (60) days before the estimated 

execution or effective date of any affiliation agreement to which the Grantee may be a party. 

CHFFA may require the Grantee to monitor and inform CHFFA of the use of the Project 

and expenditure of Grant funds during the period commencing on the effective date of this 

Agreement and ending on the earlier of the end of the reasonably expected useful life of the 

Project or twenty-five (25) years after the effective date of this Agreement. The provisions 

of this Section 6.11 shall survive termination of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE VII - NEGATIVE COVENANTS 

Grantee further covenants that so long as this Agreement is in effect, Grantee will 

not without prior consent of CHFFA: 



9 
Grant Number  

Section 7.1 – USE OF FUNDS. Use any Grant funds for purposes other than for the 

Project unless a change in the use of the Grant is approved in writing by CHFFA pursuant to 

Section 7011 of the Regulations. 

Section 7.2 – CHANGE IN PROJECT. Make any changes to the Project as described 

in the Application or any of the Grant Documents. 

Section 7.3 – DISPOSE OF PROJECT. Dispose of Project or any part thereof before 

the end of the useful life of the Project. Any determination of the useful life of a Project shall 

be based upon the values contained in the most recent edition of a publication generally 

accepted by the hospital industry (such as the American Hospital Association publication 

entitled "Estimated Useful Lives of Depreciable Hospital Assets") for the year that the Project 

was put into service.  

ARTICLE VIII – DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 

Section 8.1 – EVENTS OF DEFAULT. Each of the following shall constitute an Event 

of Default under this Agreement: 

(a) If any representation or warranty made by Grantee, or anyone acting on its 

behalf, hereunder or under any of the other Grant Documents shall prove to be 

incorrect in any material respect; 

(b) Grantee’s failure to perform any term or condition of this Agreement or any of 

the other Grant Documents or comply with any other agreements between 

Grantee and CHFFA relating to this Project;  

(c) Any substantial or continuous breach by Grantee of any material obligations 

of Grantee imposed by any agreements other than the Grant Documents with 

respect to the Project;  

(d) If at any time the Executive Director, the Deputy Executive Director, or CHFFA 

determines the use of Grant funds was not consistent with the Children’s 

Hospital Program of 2018 requirements pursuant to Section 7016 of the 

Regulations; or  

(e) If any portion of the Project (except for equipment acquisition Projects) is 

located on any real property leased by Grantee, and the lease agreement 

terminates prior to the end of the useful life of the Project under the Grant, and 

the property that was subject to the lease agreement is not simultaneously re-

leased under a new lease agreement that complies with the requirements of 

Section 7014 of the Regulations, or fee title to the property that was subject 

to the lease agreement is not simultaneously transferred to the Children’s 

Hospital. 

Section 8.2 – NOTICE OF GRANTEE’S DEFAULT AND OPPORTUNITY TO 

CURE.  



10 
Grant Number  

(a) Grantee shall provide written notice to CHFFA within thirty (30) calendar 

days of any Event of Default by specifying: (1) the nature of the event or 

deficiency giving rise to the Event of Default, (2) the action required to cure 

the Event of Default, if an action to cure is possible, and (3) a date, by which 

such action to cure must be taken.  

(b) CHFFA shall give written notice to Grantee of any Event of Default by 

specifying: (1) the nature of the event or deficiency giving rise to the Event 

of Default, (2) the action required to cure the Event of Default, if an action to 

cure is possible, and (3) a date, which shall not be less than thirty (30) 

calendar days from the mailing of the notice, by which such action to cure 

must be taken, if an action to cure is possible, provided, however, except with 

respect to a monetary Event of Default, so long as Grantee has commenced 

to cure within such time, then Grantee shall have a reasonable period 

thereafter within which to fully cure the Event of Default. 

Section 8.3 – REMEDIES. If an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, 

CHFFA shall have the right to pursue remedies pursuant to Section 7016 of the Regulations 

and to take any other actions in law or in equity to enforce performance and observance of 

any obligation, agreement or covenant of Grantee under this Agreement. 

ARTICLE IX – MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 9.1 – AMENDMENTS. This Agreement may be amended, changed or 

modified, by agreement of Grantee and CHFFA.  

Section 9.2 – ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, together with all agreements 

and documents incorporated by reference herein, constitutes the entire agreement of the parties 

and is not subject to modification, amendment, qualification or limitation except as expressly 

provided herein. 

Section 9.3 – NOTICES. Unless otherwise expressly specified or permitted by the terms 

hereof, all notices, consents or other communications required or permitted hereunder shall be 

deemed sufficiently given or served if given in writing, mailed by first-class mail, postage 

prepaid and addressed as follows: 

(i) If to Grantee: 

Hospital Name 

Address 

Attention: Title 

 

(ii) If to the Authority: 

California Health Facilities Financing Authority 

915 Capitol Mall, Suite 435 

Sacramento, California 95814 

Attention: Executive Director 

 



11 
Grant Number  

Section 9.4 – COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in several 

counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute one instrument. 

Section 9.5 – GOVERNING LAW, VENUE. This Agreement shall be construed pursuant to 

and governed by the Constitution and laws of the State of California applicable to contracts 

made and performed in the State of California. This Agreement shall be enforceable in the 

State of California and any action arising hereunder shall (unless waived by the Authority) be 

filed and maintained in Sacramento County, Sacramento, California. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be 

executed in day and year first hereinabove written. 

 

GRANTEE: 

HOSPITAL NAME 

 

 

By: ___________________________________      Date: _________________________            

 NAME, TITLE                          

 

 

 

CALIFORNIA HEALTH FACILITIES FINANCING AUTHORITY 

 

 

By: ___________________________________      Date: _________________________            

Frank Moore, Executive Director 

 

            

 

 



Grant Number  

Exhibit A 

GRANT AWARD LETTER 

 

 

 



B-1 
Grant Number  

Exhibit B 

GRANT FUNDS DISBURSEMENT CERTIFICATION 

 

California Health Facilities Financing Authority (“CHFFA” or the “Authority”) 

915 Capitol Mall, Suite 435 

Sacramento, CA 95814 

RE: Disbursement of Grant funds for Hospital Name (“Grantee”) under this Grant Agreement 

number XX between CHFFA and Grantee. 

On behalf of Grantee, Name, Tile, requests from CHFFA the periodic disbursement of Grant 

funds totaling no more than NET GRANT AWARD as allowed by the Grant Documents, and 

certifies and attests to the following: 

a. To whom payments shall be made. Payments from CHFFA to Grantee shall be directed 

to the following interest bearing account at the wiring address specified here: 

Bank Routing No.: ABA #XX 

Bank Account No.: XX 

Bank Name: XX 

Beneficiary Name: XX 

Type of Bank Account: Interest Bearing Checking Account 

b. The purpose(s) for which such payments are to be made, including all that apply: 

1) For all Projects with the exception of equipment acquisition or real property 

acquisition Projects, Grantee hereby certifies that all supporting documentation has 

been or will be submitted to CHFFA prior to disbursement of Grant funds with a 

copy of the executed construction contract and building permits, if documentation 

was not submitted with the Application. 

2) For Projects that include architect, design and engineering fees to be paid with 

Grant funds, Grantee hereby certifies that all applicable executed architect, design 

and engineering contracts have been or will be provided to CHFFA prior to 

disbursement of Grant funds. 

3) For real property acquisition Projects, Grantee hereby certifies that a copy of the 

executed purchase and sale agreement and a copy of an appraisal, the appraised 

value of which (when added to the amount of reasonable transaction and closing 

costs) shall not be less than the sum of the Grant and all other funding sources 

necessary to acquire the Project, has been provided to CHFFA. Grantee hereby also 

certifies that the appraisal provided to CHFFA was no older than six months from 

the date of the executed purchase and sale agreement and was completed by a state 

certified appraiser. 

4) For equipment acquisition Projects, Grantee hereby certifies that all contracts, 

purchase orders, invoices, and copies of cancelled checks have been or will be 

submitted to CHFFA prior to disbursement of Grant funds. If the Grantee does not 

provide copies of cancelled checks, the Grantee shall provide wire transfers, 



B-2 
Grant Number  

electronic fund transfers, or other evidence acceptable to CHFFA in lieu of 

cancelled checks.  

5) Grantee hereby certifies that it holds good and marketable fee simple title to the 

real property underlying the Project (except for equipment acquisition Projects). If 

any portion of the Project (except for equipment acquisition Projects) is located on 

any real property leased by Grantee, Grantee hereby certifies that it has satisfied 

the requirements of Section 7014 of the Regulations.  

6) Grantee hereby certifies that it has executed and delivered to CHFFA this 

Agreement. 

7) Grantee hereby certifies that the Grant amount does not exceed the cost of the 

Project. 

8) Grantee hereby certifies that if funding sources other than the Grant are required to 

complete the Project, Grantee will provide proof of the funding source, 

(commitment letters, board approved capital campaign plans or any other 

documentation acceptable to the Authority). Such documentation shall be in 

accordance with Project timeline and budget. The source and the dollar amount of 

these other funds as specified in the Application are as follows:  

 

XX 

 

9)      Grantee hereby certifies that if the Project benefits both nonpediatric and pediatric 

patients, the Grant funds shall be limited only to the proportionate cost of providing 

care to the pediatric patients.  

10) Grantee hereby certifies that it will provide evidence prior to disbursement of Grant 

funds that the Project has no outstanding issues related to the California 

Environmental Quality Act and any other applicable law.  

11) Grantee represents and warrants that if Grantee intends to change at any point in 

the Grant Period the eligible use of funds in excess of ten percent (10%) of any 

budget line item of Attachment A of Grantee’s Application (also at Exhibit E of the 

Grant Agreement), Grantee shall request and receive written authorization from 

CHFFA in advance of such change. 

12) Grantee agrees that all requests for disbursements shall be submitted in a form 

acceptable to CHFFA, with documentation supporting eligibility of each cost and 

accompanied by a completed Disbursement Request that is required pursuant to 

Section 4.4 of this Agreement.  

 

 



B-3 
Grant Number  

GRANTEE: 

HOSPITAL NAME 
 

 

By: ___________________________________      Date: _________________________            

 Name, Title                          



Grant Number  

Exhibit C 

RESOLUTION 

CALIFORNIA HEALTH FACILITIES FINANCING AUTHORITY 

 

 

 

 



Grant Number  

Exhibit D  

CERTIFIED RESOLUTION OF GRANTEE’S GOVERNING BOARD 

 



Grant Number  

Exhibit E 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

 

The Project Description, as described in Exhibit A to the Authority’s BOARD MEETING 

DATE Resolution No. XX is as follows: 

 

The proceeds of the grant will be used by XX. 

 

Attached to this Exhibit E as Exhibit E-1 are Grantee’s response to Section C (Project 

Description), Section D (Project Readiness and Feasibility), and Attachment A (Sources 

and Uses of Funds) of the Grant Application. Exhibit E-2 is a summary budget that 

provides line item descriptions of the uses of grant funds, subject to verification of 

eligibility. [if applicable:] Exhibit E-3 is a listing, prepared by Authority staff, of 

$______of ineligible expenditures, resulting in net eligible expenditures of $______. 

 

Partial disbursements of this grant award may be paid, pursuant to the release of funds 

provisions of Section 7013.1 of Children’s Hospital Program of 2018 Regulations. 

 

  



Grant Number  

 

EXHIBIT: E-1 

  



Grant Number  

EXHIBIT: E-2 

 
 

  



Grant Number  

EXHIBIT: E-3 

 
 

  



Grant Number  

EXHIBIT: E-4 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Grant Number  

EXHIBIT F 

 

The Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer or other authorized officer of the 

Applicant, on behalf of the Applicant, shall agree and certify to the following terms and 

conditions as a requirement of receiving any Grant: 

 

(1) The information contained in the Application and attachments is true and correct 

to the best of its knowledge and belief and understands that any misrepresentation 

may result in the cancellation of a Grant and other actions permitted by law and 

the Grant Agreement. 

 

(2) If Children’s Hospital is a party to a Children’s Hospital Applying Jointly 

Application, Children’s Hospital accepts designation as Lead Grantee. 

 

(3) Grantee has disclosed all information requested by the Legal Status 

Questionnaire. 

 

(4) Grant funds will only be used for the Project described in the Application unless 

a change in the Project is approved in writing by the Authority pursuant to Section 

7011 of the Regulations. 

 

(5) Grantee will provide all documents and information required by law and meet all 

necessary requirements prior to the release of the Grant. 

 

(6) Grantee may be required to return all or a portion of the Grant including any 

unused interest earnings if the Grantee fails to complete the Project as approved. 

In cases where the Grant will fund architect, design, or engineering fees or land 

acquisition costs as part of an approved Project, the Grantee may be required to 

return all Grant funds and any unused interest earnings if the Authority cannot 

determine that the associated larger Project has been completed, based on 

timelines provided within the Application. 

 

(7) Grantee will notify the Authority in writing at the time of Project completion with 

evidence of completion included. 

 

(8) The Project and financial records of the Grantee’s Project are subject to audit and 

inspection by the Authority and the California State Auditor. 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 
 



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 
 
August 19, 2020 
 
Subject:  Proposed Retroactive Amendment No. 3 to Agreement 161-2016 with Valley Children’s 
Medical Group, Inc.  
 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 
 
Summary:   
 
Kern Medical requests your Board approve retroactive Amendment No. 3 to Agreement 161-2016 with Valley 
Children’s Medical Group, Inc., for on-site consultation services to pediatric patients at Kern Medical extending 
the term for one year, August 2, 2020 through August 1, 2021, increasing the maximum payable by $161,500. 
 

Previous Agreements Payment for Services 
161-2016 – Original 

August 2, 2015 - 
August 1, 2017 
NTE $320,000 

Pediatric Gastroenterology Services  

07618 – Amendment No. 1 
August 2, 2017 - 
August 1, 2019 
NTE $322,000 

1. Pediatric Gastroenterology Services  
2. Pediatric and Neonatal Echocardiography and EKG Interpretation Services  
3. Pediatric Echocardiology Sonographer Services 

Amendment No. 2 
August 2, 2019 - 
August 1, 2020 
NTE $165,500 

Same as Amendment No. 1 

Proposed Agreement 
Amendment No. 3 
August 2, 2020 - 
August 1, 2021 
NTE $161,500 

Same as Amendment No. 1 

 
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board approve Amendment No. 3 to Agreement 161-2016 with Valley 
Children’s Medical Group, Inc., an independent contractor, for on-site consultation services to pediatric patients 
for the period August 2, 2015 through August 1, 2020, extending the term one year from August 2, 2020 through 
August 1, 2021, and increasing the maximum payable by $161,500, from $807,500to $969,000, to cover the 
extended term and authorize the Chairman to sign. 









 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 

A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
August 19, 2020 
 
Subject:  Proposed Agreement for Professional Services with Katayoun Sabetian, M.D., Inc. 
 
Recommended Action:  Approve, Authorize Chairman to sign 
 
Summary:   
 
Kern Medical requests your Board approve an Agreement for Professional Services with Katayoun Sabetian, 
M.D., Inc., for professional medical services in the Department of Medicine.  Dr. Sabetian is board certified in 
neurology by the American Board of Psychiatry and Neurology.  She has provided services at Kern Medical since 
1997 and is a valued member of the core faculty.   
 
Dr. Sabetian also assists in the training programs related to this medical specialty to resident physicians 
employed by Kern Medical.   
 
Payment for Services are:  

• Medical Director Services of the Stroke Program; 

• Neurology Coverage - Neurology clinic; Neurology rounds and consultations; weekday night call coverage 
(Monday through Thursday, 5:00 p.m. to 8:00 a.m.); weekend call coverage (Friday, 5:00 p.m. to Monday, 
8:00 a.m.); and adult EEG, nerve conduction study and EMG interpretation; and 

• Didactic Lectures  
 

Therefore, it is recommended that your Board approve the Agreement for Professional Services with Katayoun 
Sabetian, M.D., Inc., for professional medical services in the Department of Medicine, from September 1, 2020 
through August 31, 2022, in an amount not to exceed $610,000 over the two-year term, and authorize the 
Chairman to sign. 













































 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 
 
August 19, 2020 
 
Subject:  Proposed Retroactive Cerner Sales Order OPT-0245191 with Cerner Corporation for the 
purchase of Medical Coding Services 
 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chief Executive Officer to sign 
 
Summary: 
 
Kern Medical requests your Board approve the proposed retroactive Sales Order OPT-0245191 with Cerner 
Corporation for the purchase of the RevWorks Services, a professional coding services. 
 
Our current vendor performs the medical coding services at a higher hourly rate of $62.50 and an overtime rate 
of $93.75. The current vendor completes our medical coding services at a yearly cost of $1.2M and strictly codes 
to the minimal requirements.  We are recommending that we transition to Cerner’s RevWorks Services, as they 
will include additional areas of professional coding, including but not limited to, missing charges, technical 
denials for medical necessity and providing feedback and education to the physicians on denial workflows i.e. 
unspecified diagnosis. Transitioning to Cerner for professional coding services will have a monthly cost of 
$72,000 with any overtime required included, for a yearly cost of $864,000. The approval of this Sales Order is 
estimated to save Kern Medical $336,000 per year for professional medical services. 
 
Cerner Corporation’s professional fees for this 2-year engagement are $1,728,000, billed in quarterly payments 
beginning ninety (90) days from the effective date, August 19, 2020, with an estimated first payment due on 
October 1, 2020 at $192,000. 
 
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board approve the proposed retroactive Sales Order OPT-0245191 with 
Cerner Corporation to implement the Cerner RevWorks Professional Coding Services for a term of 2 (two) years, 
with a maximum payable of $1,728,000, and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign. 















 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 
 
August 19, 2020 
 
Subject:  Proposed Agreement with Freedom Healthcare Staffing to provide crisis Registered Nurse 
staffing. 
 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign and authorize the Chief Executive Officer 
to approve any future documents in support of this Agreement and as approved by Counsel 
 
Summary:   
 
Kern Medical requests your Board approve the Staffing Agreement with Freedom Healthcare Staffing, who 
specializes in rapid response and crisis Registered Nurse staffing. Freedom Healthcare Staffing is able to staff 
registered nurses in as little as five (5) days and for contractual periods as short as two (2) weeks. Kern Medical 
is under no obligation to utilize services unless we determine we have a need, so the services will be provided as 
needed. Currently, Kern Medical does not have a partnership with an agency specializing in crisis Registered 
Nurse staffing.    
 
The Staffing Agreement is for a term of one (1) year beginning on August 19, 2020, but may be terminated with 
a thirty (30) day written notice. The estimated cost of the one (1) year agreement is $1,684,800. 
 
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board approve the Staffing Agreement with Freedom Healthcare 
Staffing for the provision of nurse staffing for a term of one (1) year beginning on August 19, 2020 and 
terminating on August 18, 2021, in an amount not to exceed $1,684,800, authorize the Chairman to sign, and 
authorize the Chief Executive Officer to approve any other documents in support of this Agreement and as 
approved by Counsel. 
 
 











Susan Whitman, EVP



Susan Whitman, EVP



Susan Whitman, EVP



Susan Whitman, EVP





 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 
 
 

August 19, 2020 
 
Subject:  Comments Regarding Budget Variances – June 2020 
 
Recommended Action:  Receive and File 
 
Summary:   
 
The COVID-19 pandemic has impacted Kern Medical’s key performance indicators as follows: 
o Average Daily Census of 121 for June is 12 less than the June budget of 133 and 9 less than the year-to-date 

average census of 130 per month 
o Admissions of 754 for June are 50 less than the June budget of 804 and 15 less than the year-to-date 

average admissions of 769 per month 
o Total Surgeries of 485 for June are 45 more than the June budget of 440 and 38 more than the year-to-date 

average of 447 total surgeries per month 
o Clinic Visits of 13,159 for June is 221 more than the June budget of 12,938 and 857 more than the year-to-

date average of 12,302 per month 
 
Although some key volume indicators for the month are unfavorable compared to plan, Kern Medical has 
maintained the staffing levels necessary to adequately provide coverage for a surge in pandemic activity if 
necessary.  In addition, Kern Medical is participating in all emergency funding programs available at the county, 
state, and federal levels to offset lost revenue and increased expenses that may be realized due to the COVID-19 
issue. 
 
Also impacting the June financials is the recognition of $5,754,027 of prior years’ Graduate Medical Education 
(GME) revenue.  Historically, only Medicare has reimbursed hospitals for their GME expenses.  Recently the 
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) decided that Medicaid will also reimburse hospitals for these 
expenses.  The decision is retroactive back to FY 2017.  In addition, Kern Medical reviewed all of its supplemental 
indigent revenue programs and revised the amount of revenue to be expected from some programs. These 
changes in estimates resulted in a net increase of $10,856,575 of indigent revenue for FY 2020.  Kern Medical 
recognized this increase in revenue in June as a year-end true-up.  The favorable changes in estimates are mainly 
due to a $5,900,000 increase in QIP program revenue, a $2,300,000 increase in FY 2018 Waiver program 
revenue, and a $2,800,000 increase in FY 2019 Waiver program revenue.      
   
The following items have budget variances for the month of June 2020:    
 
Patient Revenue: 
Gross patient revenue has an unfavorable month-to-date budget variance for June because of the decrease in 
patient volumes caused by the COVID-19 pandemic.  On a year-to-date basis, the gross patient revenue budget 
variance is favorable primarily because of improved revenue cycle efficiency realized since the implementation 
of the Cerner EHR.   
 



Comments Regarding Budget Variances – June 2020 
Page 2 of 3 
 

 

 
 
Indigent Funding: 
Indigent funding has a favorable budget variance for the month due to the recognition of $5.7 million of 
Graduate Medical Education (GME) revenue.  Historically, only Medicare has reimbursed hospitals for their GME 
expenses.  Recently the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) reached the decision that Medicaid 
will also reimburse hospitals for these expenses.  The decision is retroactive back to FY 2017.  In addition, Kern 
Medical has recognized an additional $10,856,575 of indigent revenue for June as a year-to-date true-up for 
some of its indigent revenue programs.  The favorable changes in estimates are mainly due to a $5,900,000 
increase in QIP program revenue, a $2,300,000 increase in FY 2018 Waiver program revenue, and a $2,800,000 
increase in FY 2019 Waiver program revenue.          
 
Other Operating Revenue: 
Other operating revenue has a favorable variance for the month due in part to above average Proposition 56 tax 
revenue.  Proposition 56 tax revenue consists of funds derived from cigarette taxes that are allocated to 
healthcare providers.  These funds are typically paid quarterly, however, they have been budgeted evenly 
throughout the year.  In addition, Kern Medical received $128,123 of local emergency relief funding from the 
County of Kern to support the COVID-19 Temporary Isolation Unit Program at the Kern County Fairgrounds.   On 
a year-to-date basis, other operating revenue has a favorable variance due to the receipt of $4,094,873 of 
Health and Human Services (HHS) Stimulus Funding.  This funding has been allocated to healthcare providers 
from the HHS in an effort to mitigate the effects of lost revenues and increased expenses due to the pandemic. 
 
Salaries Expense: 
Salaries expense is over budget for the month and on a year-to-date basis primarily because the salaries for 
management and supervision, registered nurses, and aides and attendants have been consistently more than 
budget throughout the year.    
 
Registry Nurse Expense: 
Registry nurse expense has an unfavorable budget variance for the month and on a year-to-date basis.  Kern 
Medical continues to rely on contracted nurse staffing to supplement the nursing departments while 
maintaining nurse recruiting efforts. 
 
Medical Fees: 
Medical fees are under the budgeted amount for the month and on a year-to-date basis due to a decrease in 
contracted physician services used by the Behavioral Health Department. 
 
Other Professional Fees: 
Other professional fees have a favorable budget variance for the month and on a year-to-date basis because of 
the reclassification of Information Technology (IT) contract labor staff expense.  IT contract labor expense that 
pertains to the Cerner EHR implementation project is reclassified from expense and into the Cerner capital 
project each month.  In addition, 25 individuals that were previously contract laborers across several different 
departments have been hired by Kern Medical as full-time employees.  Therefore, the labor expense for these 
individuals is now reported under salaries and benefits expenses.  
 
Supplies Expense: 
Supplies expenses are under budget for the month and on a year-to-date basis because of lower than average 
costs for pharmaceuticals. 
 



Comments Regarding Budget Variances – June 2020 
Page 3 of 3 
 

 

 
 
Purchased Services: 
Purchased services expenses are at the budgeted amount for the month.  On a year-to-date basis, the 
unfavorable budget variance is primarily due to the fact that Trans-West Security expenses were budgeted low 
for FY 2020.  In addition, on a year-to-date basis expenses paid for out-of-network services paid to other 
providers for services not provided by Kern Medical are higher than the budgeted amount.  
 
Other Expenses: 
Other expenses are under budget for the month and on a year-to-date basis due to lower than average repairs 
and maintenance expenses.  
 



BOARD OF GOVERNORS’ REPORT
KERN MEDICAL – JUNE 2020

August 2020



Slide2

1,646
1,369 1,360 1,364 1,294 1,339

7,822

6,946
6,649

6,385
6,606

6,440

884 758 751 688 702 754

4,201
3,846

3,672

3,220

3,585 3,627

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

8,000

9,000

Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20

Hospital Volumes

Adjusted Admissions (AA) Adjusted Patient Days Admissions Patient Days

Budget Adjust Admits Budget Adjusted Patient Days Budget Admits Budget Patient Days



Slide3

Q2 2019 Actual

127
Q2 2020 Actual

138

136 
133 

118 

107 

116 
121 

4.8 5.1 4.9 4.7 5.1 4.8 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20

Census & ALOS

Average Daily Census Average LOS Budget Avg Census Budget LOS



Slide4

Q2 2019 Actual

127
Q2 2020 Actual

138

132
121 118 123 123 

101 

48
54 55 42

63

47

0

50

100

150

200

250

Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20

Deliveries

Vaginal Deliveries Cesarean Section PY Deliveries



Slide 5

14% 12% 13% 14% 14% 13%

9%
10% 9% 8% 8%

7%

31% 32% 31% 32%
36%

31%

23% 24% 23%
17%

17%

21%

1% 2% 1%

2%

2%

1%

11% 12% 11%
17%

13%
15%

7% 7% 9% 10% 8% 10%

3% 3% 2% 2% 1% 2%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20

PAYER MIX

SELF PAY

OTHER

MCAR

OTHER MGD MCAL

MCAL

KHS

HNET

COMM



Slide 6

Average Daily Census

Q2 2019 Actual

127
Q2 2020 Actual

138

Up 8%

541 514 483 462 420 491 

4,766 

4,416 

4,107 

3,061 

3,466 

3,870 

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20

Emergency Room Volume

Admissions Treat & Release Budget Total ER



Slide 7

Average Daily Census

Q2 2019 Actual

127
Q2 2020 Actual

138

Up 8%216 
208 

228 
239 

263 

250 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20

Trauma Activations

Trauma Activations Trauma Budget



Slide 8

Q2 2019 Actual

127
Q2 2020 Actual

138

Up 8%

215 

178 
201 

169 
189 

210 

330 

240 
217 

180 

211 

275 

545 

418 418 

349 

400 

485 

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20

Surgical Volume 

Inpatient Surgeries Outpatient Surgeries Total Surgeries Budget Surgeries Budget Inpatient Budget Outpatient



Slide 9

Q2 2019 Actual

127
Q2 2020 Actual

138

Up 8%

13,611 

14,328 

12,429 

11,625 

10,817 

13,159 

7,105 

8,531 8,532 
8,931 

9,738 

10,771 

2,153 
1,619 1,412 1,692 

2,378 2,203 

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

16,000

Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20

Clinic Visits

Total Clinic Visits Total Unique Patient Clinic Visits New Unique Patient Clinic Visits Budget Total Visits



Slide 10

Q2 2020 Actual

138

1,461 1,495 1,465 1,434 1,455 1,418

144 113
105

110 108
127

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

1,600

1,800

Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20

Productivity

Productive FTEs Registry Labor FTEs Prod + Non Prod Budget



Slide 11

Q2 2020 Actual

138

6.73
7.05

7.65
7.44 7.57 7.64

5.79

6.24

6.83 6.74 6.83
6.60

0.00

1.00

2.00

3.00

4.00

5.00

6.00

7.00

8.00

9.00

Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20

Labor Metrics

 FTEs Per AOB Paid  FTEs Per AOB Worked Budget FTEs/AOB Paid Budget FTE's AOB/Worked



Slide 12

Salaries & 
Benefits as % of 

Net Patient 
Revenue

BudgetBudget

$80.83

$75.33
$77.03

$67.75
$70.16

$71.80

$16.35 $17.29 $16.92 $16.32
$18.54 $18.47

0.00

10.00

20.00

30.00

40.00

50.00

60.00

70.00

80.00

90.00

Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20

M
ill

io
ns

Patient Revenue

Gross Patient Revenue Net Revenue Gross Budget Net Budget



Slide 13

Salaries & 
Benefits as % of 

Net Patient 
Revenue

BudgetBudget

$12.61 $12.61

$27.07

$14.95

$18.46

$29.36

$5.72

$2.59 $2.53 $2.53 $2.53 $2.53

$0.50 $0.50 $0.50 $0.50 $0.29 $0.39
 -

 5.00

 10.00

 15.00

 20.00

 25.00

 30.00

 35.00

Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20

M
ill

io
ns

Indigent & Correctional Revenue

Indigent Funding Correctional Medicine Other Funding Indigent Budget Correctional Budget Other Funding Budget



Slide 14

BudgetBudget

$36.9
$34.8

$48.8

$39.4
$41.0

$52.3

$0

$10

$20

$30

$40

$50

$60

Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20

M
ill

io
ns

Total Revenue

Total Revenue Budget Revenue



Slide 15

Salaries & 
Benefits as % of 

Net Patient 
Revenue

BudgetBudget

$35.46                              $33.45 $35.48 $33.59 $35.64 $33.46

$15.45
$14.03

$15.76
$14.37 $15.44 $14.31

$7.32

$6.63

$6.64
$6.87

$7.00
$6.95

$1.55

$1.42

$1.45
$1.39

$1.58
$1.60

$1.62

$1.75

$1.73
$1.76

$1.76
$1.62

$1.41

$1.23

$1.43
$1.38

$1.52
$1.50

$5.12

$4.97

$4.88
$4.59

$4.61
$4.17

$1.58

$1.97

$2.03

$1.83

$2.08

$1.90

$1.39

$1.46

$1.56

$1.41

$1.63

$1.41

$0

$5

$10

$15

$20

$25

$30

$35

$40

Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20

M
ill

io
ns

Expenses FYTD 2020

Salaries Employee Benefits Registry Medical Fees Other Professional Fees

Supplies Purchased Services Other Expenses Budget



Slide 16

Salaries & 
Benefits as % of 

Net Patient 
Revenue

BudgetBudget

$15.45

$14.03

$15.76

$14.37

$15.44

$14.31

$7.32
$6.63 $6.64 $6.87 $7.00 $6.95

$1.55 $1.42 $1.45 $1.39 $1.58 $1.60

$0

$2

$4

$6

$8

$10

$12

$14

$16

$18

Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20

M
ill

io
ns

Salaries & Benefits FYTD 2020

Salaries Employee Benefits Registry Salaries Budget Benefits Budget Registry Budget



Slide 17

Salaries & 
Benefits as % of 

Net Patient 
Revenue

BudgetBudget

$1.62

$1.75 $1.73 $1.76 $1.76

$1.62

$1.41

$1.23

$1.43
$1.38

$1.52 $1.50
$1.58

$1.97
$2.03

$1.83

$2.08

$1.90

$0

$1

$1

$2

$2

$3

Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20

M
ill

io
ns

Purchased Services, Medical, & Other Prof Fees FYTD 2020

Medical Fees Other Professional Fees Purchased Services Medical Fees Budget Other Prof Budget Purchased Serv Budget



Slide 18

Salaries & 
Benefits as % of 

Net Patient 
Revenue

BudgetBudget

$5.12
$4.97 $4.88

$4.59 $4.61

$4.17

$1.39 $1.46
$1.56

$1.41
$1.63

$1.41

$0

$1

$2

$3

$4

$5

$6

Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20

M
ill

io
ns

Expenses FYTD 2020

Supplies Other Expenses Supplies Budget Other Expenses Budget



Slide 19

Salaries & 
Benefits as % of 

Net Patient 
Revenue

BudgetBudget

$0

$2,000

$4,000

$6,000

$8,000

$10,000

$12,000

$14,000

$16,000

Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20

Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20
Supply Expense per AA $3,977 $3,040 $3,492 $3,703 $3,474 $3,457 $3,110 $3,627 $3,592 $3,365 $3,568 $3,114
Pharm Cost per AA $1,976 $1,558 $1,536 $1,762 $1,646 $1,905 $1,549 $1,569 $1,989 $1,530 $1,658 $1,110
Net Revenue Per AA $12,710 $10,636 $12,428 $12,972 $14,631 $14,212 $9,934 $12,632 $12,444 $11,963 $14,333 $13,794
Budget Supp/AA $3,295 $3,286 $3,313 $3,277 $3,303 $3,293 $3,291 $3,343 $3,293 $3,330 $3,298 $3,314
Budget Pharm/AA $1,604 $1,869 $1,870 $1,869 $1,870 $1,870 $1,736 $1,614 $1,603 $1,615 $1,605 $1,612
Budget Net Rev/AA $11,209 $11,286 $11,630 $11,234 $11,703 $11,409 $11,556 $11,730 $11,153 $11,464 $11,052 $11,568

Operating Metrics



Slide 20

Salaries & 
Benefits as % of 

Net Patient 
Revenue

BudgetBudget

$1.18 $1.17 $1.19 $1.21 $0.97 $1.28 $1.49 $1.34

$13.32

$5.77
$5.36

$18.86

$0.34 $0.36 $0.34 $0.42
$0.01 $0.31 $0.53 $0.37

$12.36

$4.79 $4.42

$17.92

$0

$2

$4

$6

$8

$10

$12

$14

$16

$18

$20

Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20

M
ill

io
ns

EBIDA 2020 FYTD

EBIDA Operating Gain (Loss) EBIDA Budget Operating Gain (Loss) Budget



Slide 21

Salaries & 
Benefits as % of 

Net Patient 
Revenue

BudgetBudget

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20

M
ill

io
ns

Cash 2020 FYTD

Total Cash Patient Cash Collections Cash Goal

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20

AR Days 2020 FYTD

Days Cash On Hand Days In A/R - Gross Days Budget



Slide 22

KERN MEDICAL
3-Month Trend Analysis: Revenue & Expense

June 30, 2020
BUDGET VARIANCE PY

APRIL MAY JUNE JUNE POS (NEG) JUNE

Gross Patient Revenue $       67,751,569 $       70,162,271 $       71,804,287 $     72,397,917 (1%) $         56,817,900 
Contractual Deductions (51,430,544) (51,621,878) (53,338,250) (54,058,975) (1%) (43,227,366)

Net Revenue 16,321,024 18,540,393 18,466,037 18,338,942 1% 13,590,534 

Indigent Funding 14,954,448 18,463,096 29,356,407 11,854,337 148% 59,454,562 
Correctional Medicine 2,527,068 2,527,068 2,527,068 2,777,068 (9%) 2,552,068 
County Contribution 285,211 285,211 285,211 284,951 0.1% 285,211 
Incentive Funding 212,040 0 104,660 333,333 (69%) 250,000 

Net Patient Revenue 34,299,791 39,815,768 50,739,383 33,588,631 51% 76,132,375 

Gain/(Loss) on Health-Related Entity 0 0 0 0 0% 0 
Other Operating Revenue 5,038,989 1,168,062 1,561,064 1,267,452 23% 1,608,974 
Other Non-Operating Revenue 14,068 9,460 17,431 4,489 288% 59,261 

Total Revenue 39,352,848 40,993,290 52,317,879 34,860,573 50% 77,800,610 

Expenses
Salaries 14,365,693 15,439,012 14,306,965 13,727,617 4% 14,100,726 
Employee Benefits 6,866,418 6,999,362 6,954,857 6,315,355 10% 5,671,236 
Registry 1,388,264 1,584,782 1,601,302 1,362,325 18% 1,737,099 
Medical Fees 1,762,437 1,761,883 1,616,857 1,758,815 (8%) 1,024,845 
Other Professional Fees 1,377,941 1,524,381 1,502,196 1,841,877 (18.4%) 1,713,174 
Supplies 4,591,410 4,614,646 4,169,141 5,253,870 (21%) 4,356,120 
Purchased Services 1,825,083 2,079,292 1,899,919 1,855,621 2% 1,904,140 
Other Expenses 1,407,758 1,634,186 1,407,853 1,531,116 (8%) 1,177,538 

Operating Expenses 33,585,005 35,637,545 33,459,092 33,646,597 (1%) 31,684,877 
Earnings Before Interest, Depreciation, 

and Amortization (EBIDA) $         5,767,843 $         5,355,745 $       18,858,787 $       1,213,976 1,453% $         46,115,733 

EBIDA Margin 15% 13% 36% 3% 935% 59%

Interest 220,039 202,776 183,420 342,117 (46%) 94,469 
Depreciation 489,161 480,743 496,173 501,636 (1%) 562,825 
Amortization 264,295 256,258 256,257 218,282 17% 76,688 

Total Expenses 34,558,499 36,577,321 34,394,943 34,708,631 (0.9%) 32,418,858 

Operating Gain (Loss) $         4,794,348 $         4,415,969 $       17,922,936 $          151,942 2,806% $         45,381,752 
Operating Margin 12.2% 10.8% 34.3% 0.44% 2,372% 58% 

Less:  FY20 Graduate Management Education (GME) Revenue (5,754,027)
Less:  Year-End True-Up for Various Indigent Programs (10,856,575)

Adjusted EBIDA for June 2020 $         2,248,186 

Adjusted Operating Gain (Loss) for June 2020 $         1,312,334 



Slide 23

Year-to-Date:  Revenue & Expense
June 30, 2020

ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PY PY VARIANCE
FYTD FYTD POS (NEG) FYTD POS (NEG)

Gross Patient Revenue $     909,219,190 $     883,174,665 3% $   849,791,859 7% 
Contractual Deductions (685,350,084) (662,874,456) 3% (645,050,176) 6% 

Net Revenue 223,869,106 220,300,209 2% 204,741,683 

Indigent Funding 188,325,019 144,622,907 30% 203,870,465 (8%)
Correctional Medicine 33,588,642 33,324,816 1% 29,745,146 13% 
County Contribution 3,422,531 3,419,409 0.09% 3,422,532 (0%)
Incentive Funding 2,225,060 4,000,000 (44%) 6,064,060 (63%)

Net Patient Revenue 451,430,358 405,667,341 11% 447,843,888 1% 

Gain/(Loss) on Health-Related Entity 0 0 0% (1,454,296) 0% 
Other Operating Revenue 19,527,240 15,365,754 27% 14,984,519 30% 
Other Non-Operating Revenue 133,150 226,729 (41%) 410,040 (68%)

Total Revenue 471,090,749 421,259,825 12% 461,784,150 2% 

Expenses
Salaries 176,853,117 165,956,447 7% 161,398,606 10% 
Employee Benefits 81,105,046 76,504,855 6% 73,175,362 11% 
Registry 19,276,639 16,688,074 16% 19,475,499 (1.0%)
Medical Fees 20,450,061 21,302,477 (4%) 20,382,125 0% 
Other Professional Fees 17,484,326 21,724,725 (20%) 20,913,741 (16%)
Supplies 61,206,496 63,914,728 (4.2%) 60,751,612 1% 
Purchased Services 23,435,907 22,638,580 4% 22,871,786 2% 
Other Expenses 18,138,517 18,678,618 (3%) 17,451,821 4% 

Operating Expenses 417,950,110 407,408,505 3% 396,420,553 5% 
Earnings Before Interest, Depreciation, 

and Amortization (EBIDA) $       53,140,639 $       13,851,320 283.7% $     65,363,596 (19%)

EBIDA Margin 11% 3% 243% 14% (20%)

Interest 2,666,182 4,105,399 (35%) 2,884,863 (8%)
Depreciation 5,911,297 6,793,078 (13%) 6,215,962 (5%)
Amortization 2,369,891 1,987,785 19% 897,543 164% 

Total Expenses 428,897,478 420,294,766 2% 406,418,921 6% 

Operating Gain (Loss) $       42,193,271 $            965,058 4272% $     55,365,229 (24%)
Operating Margin 9% 0.2% 3810% 12% (25%)

Less:  FY18 Medi-Cal Enhanced Payment Program (EPP) Revenue (1,166,512)
Less:  FY19 Rate Range IGT Revenue (2,665,404)
Less:  FY20 Graduate Management Education (GME) Revenue (12,126,374)
Less:  HHS COVID-19 Stimulus Revenue (4,094,873)
Less:  Year-End True-Up for Various Indigent Programs (10,856,575)

Adjusted EBIDA Year-to-Date for June 2020 $       22,230,902 

Adjusted Operating Gain (Loss) Year-to-Date for June 2020 $       11,283,533 



Slide 24

JUNE 2020 JUNE 2019
ASSETS:
  Total Cash 30,245,328$     47,675,581$     

Patient Receivables Subtotal 271,430,580 180,133,380     
Contractual Subtotal (212,300,057) (139,309,327)    
  Net Patient Receivable 59,130,522 40,824,053

Total Indigent Receivable 134,657,236 101,287,001     
Total Other Receivable 5,320,692 10,531,981       
Total Prepaid Expenses 3,297,972 4,467,061         
Total Inventory 5,813,373 5,587,862         

  Total Current Assets 238,465,123 210,373,540     

Deferred Outflows of Resources 85,573,671       83,544,619       
Investments Deposited with Trustee 0 931,830            

Total Land, Equipment, Buildings and Intangibles 194,512,598 159,796,682     
Total Construction in Progress 16,455,503 34,296,803       
  Total Property, Plant & Equipment 210,968,101 194,093,484     

Total Accumulated Depr & Amortization (115,672,717) (107,415,199)    

   Net Property, Plant, and Equipment 95,295,384 86,678,286       

  Total Long Term Assets 85,573,671 84,476,449       

Total Assets 419,334,178$   381,528,274$   

KERN MEDICAL
BALANCE SHEET



Slide 25

JUNE 2020 JUNE 2019
LIABILITIES & EQUITY:
Total Accounts Payable 25,155,232$     25,547,331$     
Total Accrued Compensation 27,024,713 28,741,880       
Total Due Government Agencies 34,181,465 39,832,026       
Total Other Accrued Liabilities 63,996,043 50,932,704       

  Total Current Liabilities 150,357,452 145,053,941     

Unfunded Pension Liability 307,234,709 293,255,458     
Other Long-Term Liabilities 103,115,962 126,985,955     
  Total Long-Term Liabilities 410,350,671 420,241,413     

Total Liabilities 560,708,123 565,295,354     

Fund Balance 36,913,884 36,714,021       
Retained Earnings (178,287,830) (220,481,101)    
Total Fund Balance (141,373,946) (183,767,079)    

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 419,334,178$   381,528,274$   

KERN MEDICAL
BALANCE SHEET



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 
 
August 19, 2020 
 
Subject: Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Executive Officer Report 
 
Recommended Action: Receive and File 
 
Summary:   

 
The Chief Executive Officer of the Kern County Hospital Authority will provide your Board with a 
hospital-wide update. 



 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

Health and Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2) 
 
On the recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer, the Board of Governors will hold 
a closed session on August 19, 2020, to discharge its responsibility to evaluate and 
improve the quality of care rendered by health facilities and health practitioners. The 
closed session involves: 
 
 
   X    Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health practitioners (Health 
and Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2)) –   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

Government Code Section 54956.9 
 
Based on the advice of Counsel, the Board of Governors is holding a closed session on 
August 19, 2020, to confer with, or receive advice from Counsel regarding pending 
litigation, because discussion in open session concerning this matter would prejudice the 
position of the authority in the litigation. The closed session involves: 
 
 
   X     CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION  

(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Martin L. Goldman, 
M.D., an individual v. Kern County Hospital Authority, et al., Kern County Superior 
Court Case No. BCV-18-100390 SDS –  
 

 
 



 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

Government Code Section 54956.9 
 
Based on the advice of Counsel, the Board of Governors is holding a closed session on 
August 19, 2020, to confer with, or receive advice from Counsel regarding pending 
litigation, because discussion in open session concerning this matter would prejudice the 
position of the authority in the litigation. The closed session involves: 
 
 
   X     CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION  

(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Tyler Andrews, an 
individual v. Kern County Hospital Authority, et al., Kern County Superior Court 
Case No. BCV-19-103529 TSC –  
 

 
 



 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

Health and Safety Code Section 101855(e)(1) 
 
On the recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer, the Board of Governors will hold 
a closed session on August 19, 2020, the premature disclosure of which would create a 
substantial probability of depriving the authority of a substantial economic benefit or 
opportunity.  The closed session involves: 
 
 
   X    Request for Closed Session for the purpose of discussion or taking action on 
authority trade secrets (Health and Safety Code Section 101855(e)(1)) –  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

 
On the recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer, the Board of Governors will hold a closed 
session on August 19, 2020, to consider: 
 
 
   X     CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS - Agency designated representatives: 

Vice President & General Counsel Karen S. Barnes and designated staff – Unrepresented 
Employee: Chief Executive Officer (Government Code Section 54957.6) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


	08.19.20  09b CFO Presentation Final.pdf
	BOARD OF GOVERNORS’ REPORT�kern medical – June 2020
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20
	Slide Number 21
	Slide Number 22
	Slide Number 23
	Slide Number 24
	Slide Number 25

	08.19.20  04b Resolution re acceptance of CHFFA grant award for peds.pdf
	BEFORE THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS
	OF THE KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY
	In the matter of:                       Resolution No. 2020-___
	AYES:
	NOES:
	ABSENT:
	MONA A. ALLEN
	Mona A. Allen
	RESOLUTION





